
Agenda ........................................................................................................................ 2

Public Hearing Notice .................................................................................................. 5

Special Town Meeting Warrant .................................................................................... 6

Previous Meeting Minutes ........................................................................................... 9

Citizens Petition - Commercial Solar Energy Systems .............................................. 17

MMA Town Meeting & Elections Manual - Voter Petitions ......................................... 19

Proposed Tax Abatements ......................................................................................... 47

Contract for Assessing Services ................................................................................ 66

CIP History ................................................................................................................ 75

Annual Staff Appointments ........................................................................................ 77

Annual Board & Committee Appointments ................................................................ 78

Proposed FY2024-2025 Fee Schedule ..................................................................... 79

Town of Raymond
Select Board ePacket

June 20, 2024
Table of Contents

(Click on item to go to that page)



Page 2 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

Agenda

 
Select Board Meeting Agenda                     (Page 1 of 3)                      June 20, 2024 

 

SELECT BOARD 
Agenda 

 
June 20, 2024 

 
5:30pm – Public Hearing &  

Special Town Meeting 
 

At Broadcast Studio & on YouTube 
 

& then Regular Meeting 
At Broadcast Studio & Via Zoom & on 

YouTube 
Resolution:  We, the Raymond Select Board, recognize our individual and collective responsibilities as leaders and representatives of our 
community.  To this end, we pledge to conduct ourselves in a manner befitting these roles and duties.  We pledge and encourage others to 
“Be the Influence” and to recognize that decisions matter. 

 
Public Hearing 

 
1) Open Public Hearing 

a) Update to Tax Increment Financing District to Include Broadband 
 

 
Special Town Meeting 

 
2) Special Town Meeting Warrant – to add Broadband as an allowable expense to the TIF 

District Agreement (broadband was added as an allowable expense by the State after our 
TIF District Agreement was enacted, also the ad was not printed in the newspaper in error 
for the previous Special Town Meeting held on May 7, 2024, so it had to be done again). 

 

Select Board Meeting 
 

3) Call regular meeting to order 
 

4) Election of Officers 
a) Chair 
b) Vice Chair 
c) Parliamentarian 
 

5) Minutes of previous meetings 
a) May 7, 2024 

  
6) New Business 

a) Consideration of Citizen Petition re: Change Land Use Ordinance Sections Pertaining 
to Solar Panels – Bob and Laurie Wallace 



Page 3www.raymondmaine.org

 
Select Board Meeting Agenda                     (Page 2 of 3)                      June 20, 2024 

b) Discussion of How to Proceed with the RWPA Boat Inspectors’ Liability Insurance 
Ending 
Raymond Waterways Protection Association (RWPA) found that their liability 
insurance is being cancelled as of the end of July and cannot find another carrier.  We 
have found that the only way the inspectors could be covered by the Town of 
Raymond’s insurance would be to have the inspectors be employees. 

c) Consideration of Tax Abatement(s) – Curt Lebel, Contract Assessor 
d) Consideration of Issuing Supplement Tax Bill(s) – Curt Lebel, Contract Assessor 
e) Consideration of Renewing the Contract Assessor’s Contract – Curt Lebel, Contract 

Assessor 
f) Discussion of Direction for Public Works Garage with the Failure of the Warrant Article 

– Nathan White, Public Works Director 
g) Consideration of Re-allocation of CIP Funds from Prior Projects – Sue Look, Town 

Manager 
In researching the Capital Improvement Funds I found that there is a total of $52,208 
allocated to projects that are either complete or abandoned.  30-A MRSA §5802 (3) 
says in part:   
The municipal officers are trustees of the municipal reserve fund. 
3.  Transfer of balance.  The balance of any account of a reserve fund may be 
transferred to another reserve account or to surplus when the purpose for which it was 
established has been accomplished or abandoned. 

h) Consideration of Staff Annual Appointments – Melanie Fernald, Town Clerk 
i) Consideration of Boards/Committees Annual Appointments – Melanie Fernald, Town 

Clerk 
j) Consideration of Select Board Representation on Boards/Committees – Select Board 
k) Consideration of Annual Fee Schedule – Melanie Fernald, Town Clerk 

 
7) Public Comment 

 
8) Selectman Comment 

 
9) Town Manager's Report and Communications 

 
a) Confirm Dates for Upcoming Regular Meetings 

● July 9, 2024 
● August 13, 2024 

 
b) Upcoming Holiday Closings 

● Thursday, July 4 – Town Office closed – Independence Day 
 



Page 4 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
Select Board Meeting Agenda                     (Page 3 of 3)                      June 20, 2024 

10) Executive Session(s) 
a) Consideration of Appointing an Interim Treasurer (Pursuant to MRSA 1 §405 (6)(A)) 

 
11) Adjournment 



Page 5www.raymondmaine.org

TOWN OF RAYMOND 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
Regarding  

 
An amendment to the Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing (“TIF”) 

District Development Program known as:  
 

“Portland Natural Gas Transmission System Municipal Development And Tax Increment 
Financing District ” 
(First Amendment) 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Town of Raymond will hold a public hearing on 

 
June 20, 2024  

at the 
Broadcast Studio 

423 Webbs Mills Road 
Raymond, ME 04071 

the Public Hearing will be at 5:30PM 
 

The purpose of the public hearing is to receive public comment on the proposed 
amendment to the TIF District, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the 
Maine Revised Statutes, as amended.   
 

The proposed Amendment seeks to add an additional authorized project cost to the 
Development Program to allow the Town to use TIF funds for costs associated with broadband 
and fiber optics expansion projects. 

 
All interested persons are invited to attend the public hearing and will be given an 

opportunity to be heard at that time.  A copy of the materials relating to the Amendment will be 
on file at the Town Clerk’s office prior to the public hearing and can also be obtained by calling 
the Town Clerk at 207-655-4742 ext. 121, during normal business hours and requesting that a 
copy be mailed to you.  
 

The ZOOM link for the meeting is posted on calendar event at www.raymondmaine.org.  
Click on the meeting to find the ZOOM link and all available documents. 
 

Public comments will be taken at the meeting and written comments should be submitted 
to Sue Look at sue.look@raymondmiane.org, no later than 4:00 p.m. June 19, 2024. 

Public Hearing Notice



Page 6 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

Special Town Meeting Warrant



Page 7www.raymondmaine.org



Page 8 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 9www.raymondmaine.org

 

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 1 of 8)                      May 7, 2024 

 

PUBLIC HEARING & 
SPECIAL TOWN MEETING & 

SELECT BOARD 
Minutes 

 
May 7, 2024 

 
5:30pm – Public Hearing &  

Special Town Meeting & 
Regular Meeting 

 
At Broadcast Studio &  

Via Zoom & on YouTube 
Resolution:  We, the Raymond Select Board, recognize our individual and collective responsibilities as leaders and representatives of our 
community.  To this end, we pledge to conduct ourselves in a manner befitting these roles and duties.  We pledge and encourage others to 
“Be the Influence” and to recognize that decisions matter. 

 
 
Select Board members in attendance:  Joe Bruno – Chair, Rolf Olsen – Vice Chair, Samuel 
Gifford, Teresa Sadak, Derek Ray 
Absent: none 
 
Town Staff in attendance: 
 Sue Look – Town Manager 
 Melanie Fernald – Town Clerk 
 Nathan White – Public Works Director 
 Charisse Keach – Finance Director 
 Bruce Tupper – Fire Chief 
 Wayne Jones - Fire Inspector 
 Chris Hanson – Interim Code Enforcement Officer 
 Cathy Gosselin – HR Director 
 Curt Lebel – Contract Assessor 
 John Facella – Public Safety Educator 
  

1) Public Hearing 
a) Update to Tax Increment Financing District to Include Broadband 

Chair Bruno opened the Public Hearing. The following people spoke: 
Peter Leavitt, 2 Leavitt Road asked for clarification that this amendment of the TIF is 
to allow the use of money from this specific TIF to be spent on Broadband expansion 
outside of this TIF District.  Asked if this money could also be used for other things 
like sidewalks.  Asked what other things TIF money has been used on and how 
much money is currently in the TIF.  
Chair Bruno asked for a rundown of the selection process for the Broadband project.  
David Good of Mission Broadband shared a presentation of the RFP Overview for 
the COLAB (Cumberland Oxford Lakes Area Broadband) group in partnership with 
GPCOG.  GPCOG hired Mission Broadband to facilitate the RFP process.  Kevin 
Woodbrey clarified that Mission Broadband compiled the suggestions and 
specifications and played a neutral role in the process. 

Previous Meeting Minutes



Page 10 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 2 of 8)                      May 7, 2024 

Sarah Davis, Raymond resident and Vice President of Market Development with 
Consolidated Communications.  She feels that the RPF details and requests are 
different from what this project is today.   
Curt Lebel, Assessor, clarified that the Warrant item is only about expanding the 
ability to use TIF monies to pay for broadband upgrades.   
Grace Leavitt and Peter Leavitt, 2 Leavitt Road asked for clarification on the bond 
question that’s on the Annual Town Meeting warrant on this topic vs the use of TIF 
money. 
Chair Bruno closed the Public Meeting. 

 
2) Special Town Meeting 

Town of Raymond 
May 7, 2024 

SPECIAL TOWN MEETING WARRANT 
 
TO: Don McClellan, a resident of the Town of Raymond, in the County of Cumberland and 
State of Maine. 

 
GREETINGS: 
 

In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the 
inhabitants of the Town of Raymond, qualified by law to vote in Town affairs, to meet at 
the Broadcast Studio at 423 Webbs Mills Road in said town on Tuesday, May 7, 2024, at 
5:30 P.M., then and there to act on Articles 1 through 2 as set out below.   

 
 
ARTICLE 1: To elect a moderator to preside at said meeting. 
 
Nomination made and seconded for Joe Bruno.  Call for nominations to cease. 
Voted 3-0 
 
Mr. Bruno was sworn in by Town Clerk Fernald 
 
 
ARTICLE 2:  Shall the voters of the Town of Raymond, Maine adopt the First Amendment to the 
Portland Natural Gas Transition System Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing 
District, such adoption to be pursuant to the following findings, terms and provisions?    
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Raymond (the “Town”) is authorized pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 30-A 
of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, to amend previously established tax increment financing 
(“TIF”) districts and development programs within the Town; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town designated the Portland Natural Gas Transmission System Municipal 
Development and Tax Increment Financing District (the “District”) and adopted a Development 
Program for the District on September 15, 1998 and March 20, 1999 in order to capture the value of 
real and personal property improvements made within the District and to enable the use of TIF 



Page 11www.raymondmaine.org

 

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 3 of 8)                      May 7, 2024 

revenues for various municipal and other economic development projects, which received approval 
from the Maine Department of Economic and Community Development (“DECD”) on March 31, 
1999; and 

WHEREAS, amending the Development Program for the District will help to continue to promote 
economic development within the Town and the surrounding region; improve and broaden the tax 
base of the Town; and improve the economy of the Town and the State of Maine; and, specifically, 
will allow the Town the ability to use TIF funds for costs associated with broadband and fiber optics 
expansion projects.; and 

WHEREAS, the Select Board has held a public hearing on May 7, 2024, upon at least ten (10) days 
prior notice published in a newspaper of general circulation within the Town, on the question of 
adopting the First Amendment to the Development Program for the District in accordance with the 
requirements of 30-A M.R.S. § 5226; and 

WHEREAS, the Town has considered the comments provided at the public hearing, both for and 
against the adoption of the First Amendment to the Development Program, if any; and 

WHEREAS, it is expected that approval will be sought and obtained from DECD approving the First 
Amendment to the Portland Natural Gas Transmission System Municipal Development and Tax 
Increment Financing District and Development Program (the “First Amendment”).  

NOW, THEREFORE: 
 
Section 1. The Town hereby adopts the First Amendment to the Portland Natural Gas Transmission 
System Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District and Development Program, 
pursuant to the following findings, terms, and provisions:  

 
 a.  Pursuant to Title 30-A M.R.S. Section 5226(5) pertaining to TIF district and development 
program amendments, this First Amendment to the Development Program does not result in the 
District being out of compliance with any of the conditions of 30-A M.R.S. Section 5223(3) which 
pertain to the percentage of area within the District that is suitable for commercial use, the TIF 
acreage caps for single TIF districts and for all TIF districts in the Town, and the total TIF district 
valuation cap. 

 b.  The First Amendment to the Development Program will make a contribution to the 
economic growth and well-being of the Town and the surrounding region, and will contribute to the 
betterment of the health, welfare and safety of the inhabitants of the Town, including a broadened and 
improved tax base and economic stimulus, and therefore constitutes a good and valid public purpose. 
The Town has considered all evidence, if any, presented to it at the required public hearing with 
regard to any adverse economic effect on or detriment to any existing business and has found and 
determined that such adverse economic effect on or detriment to any existing business, if any, is 
outweighed by the contribution expected to be made through the District and the Development 
Program. 

Section 2.    Pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, the 
Town hereby amends the District designated and described more particularly set forth in the “First 
Amendment to the Portland Natural Gas Transmission System Development and Tax Increment 
Financing District Development Program” presented to the Town Meeting in the form attached hereto 



Page 12 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 4 of 8)                      May 7, 2024 

and such Development Program is hereby incorporated by reference into this vote as the First 
Amendment to the Development Program for the District. 
 
Section 3. The Town Manager, or duly appointed representative, is hereby authorized, empowered 
and directed to submit the First Amendment to the Development Program to DECD for review and 
approval pursuant to the requirements of 30-A M.R.S. § 5226.  

Section 4. The foregoing adoption of the First Amendment shall automatically become final and shall 
take full force and effect upon receipt by the Town of approval of the First Amendment by DECD, 
without requirement of any further action by the Town, the Select Board, or any other party.  

Section 5. The Town Manager, or duly appointed representative, is hereby authorized and 
empowered, at their discretion, from time to time, to make such revisions to the documents related to 
the First Amendment they may deem reasonably necessary or convenient in order to facilitate the 
process for review and approval of the First Amendment by DECD, so long as such revisions are not 
inconsistent with these resolutions or the basic structure and intent of the Select Board in adopting the 
First Amendment. 

Section 6. This Order shall take effect immediately upon adoption.  

Motion to approve as presented by Mr Olsen.  Seconded by Mr Sadak. 
Vote 18-0 
 

 
3) Adjourn Special Town Meeting 

Chair Bruno adjourned the Special Town Meeting 
 

Select Board Meeting 
 

4) Call regular meeting to order at 6:10pm by Chair Bruno 
 

5) Minutes of previous meetings 
a) April 8, 2024 – Regular Meeting 

Motion to approve as presented by Ms Sadak.  Seconded by Mr Ray.   
Unanimously approved 
 

b) April 26, 2024 – Emergency Meeting 
Motion to approve as presented by Mr Olsen.  Seconded by Mr Ray.   
Motion passes (4-0-1, Sadak abstained) 
 

6) Public Hearings 
a) Annual Town Meeting Warrant Articles Including Ordinance Change Articles 

Chair Bruno requested that representatives from Sebago Technics and Grant Hayes 
give their presentation of the Public Works Garage project.   
The following individuals spoke: 
Owens McCullough - Sebago Technics; Mike Hays - Grant Hays; Nathan White - 



Page 13www.raymondmaine.org

 

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 5 of 8)                      May 7, 2024 

Public Works Director; Denis Morse - Cape Road; David Brown - Tenney Hill Road; 
Bruce Tupper – Fire Chief; Peter Leavitt - Leavitt Road; John Facella – Fire 
Department 
 

7) New Business 
a) *Discussion of Choice of Fiber Network Vendor – Sarah Davis questioned why her 

company was not chosen, COLAB committee wants to present their process for 
choosing Sebago Fiber (discussion on this item took place during the Public Hearing 
at the start of the meeting. 
 

b) Consideration of Awarding the Personal Property Revaluation to KRT 
FRP was resubmitted for Personal Property Revaluation; KRT was the sole bidder.   
Motion to award bid as presented by Ms Sadak.  Seconded by Mr Olsen.   
Unanimously approved 
 

c) Consideration of Authorizing Corporate Resolution for Access to Accounts at 
Portland Trust Co  
The Town has several Trust accounts for cemetery funds, scholarships, and more, 
and the Finance Director’s name is the only name authorized on the accounts.  This 
is a request to add a second name to the accounts.  The question was raised as to 
whether a specific name is needed, or if a position/job title is sufficient.  Selecst 
Board members suggested that a specific name is noted, with their job title and “or 
any successor” 
Motion to approve by Ms Sadak.  Seconded by Olsen.   
Unanimously approved 
 

d) Consideration of Adding a Supplemental Warrant to the Annual Town Meeting 
Warrant for Changes to the Fire Protection Ordinance – Sprinkler Articles 
Public Safety crafted an update to the sprinkler ordinance for the March 12, 2024, 
Select Board meeting which included allowing 2-hour fire rated separation walls to 
delineate compartments to include in calculations for whether or not a building 
requires sprinklers and adding an appeal process.  However the meeting was cut 
short due to a storm, the item was not taken up, and therefore could not be sent to 
the Planning Board for consideration in time for the Annual Town Meeting Warrant. 
Chief Tupper spoke about the Town’s sprinkler ordinance and how it compares to the 
State’s ordinance.  The Town’s current ordinance takes into consideration our Fire 
Department’s capability to respond to a fire.   
John Facella spoke about costs of sprinkler systems and those at-risk segments of 
the population (young children and elderly) who are further protected by sprinkler 
systems.   
Motion to add the supplemental warrant item as presented by Mr Olsen.  Seconded 
by Mr Gifford.   
Unanimously approved 



Page 14 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 6 of 8)                      May 7, 2024 

 
e) Consideration of Using Select Board Contingency for Public Safety Unforeseen 

Expenses  
Chief Tupper presented a list of unplanned expenses.  Several of the costs are 
repairs to equipment, trucks and towing wrecker bills for pulling trucks out of ditches.  
Turnout gear and ladders were damaged during the fire on Crescent Lake and will 
need to be replaced.  The availability/applicability of FEMA funds was discussed.   
Item not acted upon, to allow for more investigation into FEMA funds and the ending 
of fiscal year.   
 

f) *Consideration of Appointing Interim CEO 
The board inadvertently did not complete the motion to appoint Chris Hanson as the 
Interim CEO at the April 8, 2024, meeting. 
 
Motion to appoint Chris Hanson as Interim Code Enforcement Officer by Mr Olsen.  
Seconded by Ms Sadak.   
Unanimously approved 
 

g) Consideration of Proclamation for Veteran’s Ceremony 
The ceremony will be held at Veterans Park on May 17, 2024 at 11:30AM. 
Motion to approve as presented by Mr Olsen, seconded by Ms Sadak 
Unanimously approved 
 

h) Consideration of Approving Warrant Calling the RSU #14 Election on June 11, 2024  
This is the Annual Warrant that allows us to call the Election to vote on the RSU #14 
budget.  The budget will be voted on at he Board of Director’s meeting to be held at 
Windham High School on Wednesday, May 15th at 6:30PM 
Motion to approve as presented by Ms Sadak, seconded by Mr Gifford 
Unanimously approved 
 

i) Consideration of Changing the Open Hours of the Town Office 
Suggesting changing the opening time from 8:30am to 8:00am and changing closing 
on Tuesday from 7:00pm to 6:00pm.  This is a net increase for citizens of 1 hour. 
Hours would be Tuesdays 8am – 6pm; Wednesdays through Fridays 8am – 4pm.   
Grace Leavitt, Leavitt Road is concerned that residents who work in Portland will not 
be able to make it to the Town Office by 6pm.   
Select Board requested that the change starts as of July 1st, 2024 to allow the 
advertisement of the new hours.   
Motion to approve the change of hours of the Town Office by Ms Sadak.  Seconded 
by Mr Ray.   
Unanimously approved 
 



Page 15www.raymondmaine.org

 

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 7 of 8)                      May 7, 2024 

8) Public Comment 
none 

9) Selectman Comment 
none 

10) Town Manager's Report and Communications 
a) Confirm Dates for Upcoming Regular Meetings 

● June 25, 2024  June 20, 2024 (Thursday) 

● July 9, 2024 
 
 

b) Upcoming Election Schedule 
● May 15, 2024 – Budget Vote at Windham High School Auditorium – 6:30pm 
● May 24, 2024 – Deadline to change parties to vote in the Primary on June 11th 
● June 6, 2024 – Deadline to request absentee ballots 
● June 11, 2024 – State Primary, Municipal Officers, Annual Town Meeting Warrant 

& RSU #14 Budget Elections at Jordan Small Middle School Gym – 7:00am to 
8:00pm 
 

c) Reminder of Upcoming Holiday Schedule 
● Monday, May 27th – Memorial Day 

 
11) Executive Session(s) 

a) Consideration and Award of Scholarship Applications and Student Recognition -
Pursuant to MRSA 1 §405 (6)(F) 
Motion to enter Executive Session at 8:32pm by Ms Sadak, seconded by Mr Olsen. 
Unanimously approved 
 
Motion to exit Executive Session at 8:40pm by Mr Olsen, seconded by Mr Ray. 
Unanimously approved 
 
Motion to grant $500 in scholarships to each of the 9 eligible applicants by Mr 
Olsen, seconded by Mr Ray 
Unanimously approved 
 

12) Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn at 8:40pm by Mr Olsen.  Seconded by Mr Gifford.   
Unanimously approved 

 



Page 16 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 8 of 8)                      May 7, 2024 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Melanie Fernald, Town Clerk 
 



Page 17www.raymondmaine.org

On May 21, 2024, Laurie Wallace and Jennifer Danzig delivered 37 petition pages 

to Town Clerk Melanie Fernald with the following question and summary:

Shall an ordinance dated July 1, 2023, and entitled “An amendment to the 
Town of Raymond’s Land Use Ordinance Regulating Commercial Solar 
Energy Systems,” be enacted?

Summary:  This amendment, with a retroactive date of July 1, 2023, will 
prohibit the installation of commercial solar energy systems in the Rural 
Residential District and all of the Shoreland Districts.

Town Clerk Fernald has certified the signatures and found 464 valid signatures, well 

over the required 269 signatures (10% of the votes cast in the last gubernatorial 

election which was in November of 2022 - 2,692 votes) to put this issue before the 

Select Board for consideration.

MRS Title 30-A, §2522. PETITION FOR ARTICLE IN WARRANT
§2522. Petition for article in warrant
On the written petition of a number of voters equal to at least 10% of the 
number of votes cast in the town at the last gubernatorial election, but in no 
case less than 10, the municipal officers shall either insert a particular article 
in the next warrant issued or shall within 60 days call a special town meeting 
for its consideration.

Following is the memo submitted by the petitioners and then an excerpt of the MMA 

Town Meeting & Election Manual, the chapter pertaining to Voter Petitions.

Citizens Petition - Commercial Solar Energy Systems



Page 18 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 19www.raymondmaine.org

MMA Town Meeting & Elections Manual - Voter Petitions



Page 20 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 21www.raymondmaine.org



Page 22 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 23www.raymondmaine.org



Page 24 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 25www.raymondmaine.org



Page 26 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 27www.raymondmaine.org



Page 28 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 29www.raymondmaine.org



Page 30 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 31www.raymondmaine.org



Page 32 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 33www.raymondmaine.org



Page 34 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 35www.raymondmaine.org



Page 36 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 37www.raymondmaine.org



Page 38 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 39www.raymondmaine.org



Page 40 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 41www.raymondmaine.org



Page 42 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 43www.raymondmaine.org



Page 44 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 45www.raymondmaine.org



Page 46 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 47www.raymondmaine.org

TOWN OF RAYMOND  Assessing Office
401 Webbs Mills Road   Raymond, Maine  04071 

Phone  207.655.4742 x51    Fax  207.655.3024 
assessor@raymondmaine.org 

 INTEROFFICE M EMORANDUM 

TO: RAYMOND BOARD OF ASSESSORS 

FROM: CURT LEBEL, ASSESSORS AGENT 

SUBJECT: TAX ABATEMENT/SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

DATE: 5/28/2024 

CC: TOWN MANAGER 

Dear Board Members, 

Good afternoon, 

I have 1 abatement and 1 supplemental tax for the board to consider at its upcoming meeting. 

Bettney Abatement:   

Harold and Amanda Bettney for some years owned a park model trailer located at Kokatosi Campground. 
Unregistered camper trailers and park models are assessed as personal property under Maine law.   

Annually, Kokatosi campground graciously assists the town in the valuation of the seasonal campers at the 
campground by providing a list of owners and the make, model and MSRP of the unregistered campers sited at the 
campground.  Our office then applies a uniform depreciation schedule along with a certified ratio adjustment to the 
valuations provided to arrive at the assessed value. 

Mr. Bettney removed his camper trailer from Kokatosi at the end of the 2022 season.  The camper was reported to 
us for the 2023 assessment in error and a tax bill was issued to Mr. & Mrs. Bettney.  The site has now been occupied 
by an individual who excises their camper, thus exempting it from personal property tax. 

The property was assessed for $9,900. 

This abatement in the amount of $157.41 plus any interest accrued to remove the erroneous assessment made to 
Bettney. 

Whitney Tree Growth Withdrawal (Supplemental Tax) 

Ralf and Harriette Whitney have requested to remove 1.18 acres of classified land, which abuts 2 other acres of 
unclassified land around their home site from tree growth.  A penalty has been calculated in the amount of $464.40 
for the removal of the acreage from tree growth.  The parcel continues to contain 32.82 acres of mixed wood tree 

Proposed Tax Abatements



Page 48 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

2 

growth land southerly of the home site and the area around the homesite will now include 3.18 acres of unenrolled 
land.   

I recommend the Board issue a supplemental tax in the amount of $464.40 for the removal of 1.18 acres from tree 
growth classification. 

Sincerely, 

Curt Lebel, Assessors Agent, Town of Raymond 



Page 49 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

Tax Abatement 



Tax 
Year # M/L ACCT# OWNER OF RECORD OLD 

ASSESSMENT
NEW 

ASSESSMENT
VALUATION 

ABATED
TAX 

AMOUNT TAX RATE MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION

2023- 2 PP 13PP

Harold Bettney      
Amanda Bettney      
23 Arlington Av     
Westbrook, ME 04092 9,900.00$     -$   9,900.00$   157.41$    0.0159

Camper Trailer located at Kokatosi Campground was 
removed prior to April 1 assessment date.  Assessed in 
Error.

$9,900.00 $157.41

Voted by the Raymond Board of Assessors on:  June 20, 2024 Attest:_____________________________________________________Susan Look, Town Manager

TOTALS

CCeerrttiiffiiccaattee  ooff  AAbbaatteemmeenntt

We, the Board of Assessors of the municipality of Raymond, hereby certify to Suzanne Carr, tax collector,  that the accounts herein, contain a list of valuations of the estates, real and 
personal, that have been granted an abatement of property taxes by us for the April 1, 2023 assessment on June 20, 2024.  You are hereby discharged from any further obligation to 
collect the amount abated.      

36 M.R.S.A § 841



Page 51www.raymondmaine.org



Page 52 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



B9405PAccount Number Active Status A

Value% CondYear AssessedReplace CoDep.QntyDescriptionCodeTypeOwner
Leased Items

1 1ofCard #

Notes Supplemental Data
TRAILER
232-7942 Y

Y

Usrfld 01
Usrfld 02
Usrfld 03
Usrfld 04
Usrfld 05

Usrfld 06
Usrfld 07
Usrfld 08
Usrfld 09
Usrfld 10

Line NotesValue New



9,900

0
9,900

Total Assessed:
Total Value New:

Name
Address

% CondYear Assessed

13,400
Owner Information Business Information Current Valuation

Vist History Prior Values
Type Description AppraisedValue AssessedValue

Summary By State
Info Source Visit NotesPurpose/ResultDate ID Year AssessedValue

B9405PAccount Number Active Status

Owned Items
Type Description QntyLine#

NO CHANGES PER SPREADSHEET FR

1 1

Active1 1ofCard #

VISION

Account Information
Personal Property

Raymond, ME

50

2023
2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

9,900
11,500
14,800
18,200
21,500
24,100
26,800
40,000
40,000
40,000
18,000

05 REC VEHICLE 8,447

Total Appraised:

Bus Locn W4A KOKATOSI
Business BETTNEY HAROLD & AMANADA

District
State Bus Code
Mblu Net Assessment:

CL
DL
MM

08-28-
08-14-
09-02-

BETTNEY HAROLD & AMANDA
23 ARLINGTON AVE
   WESTBROOK, ME 04092

Line NotesLessee
05

Appraised
2012

Value NewReplace Cost

13,408

53,633 53,633 0.25 13,408

05-28-2024 9:18:

Assessment Ratio:
BETE Exmpt

38' CANTERBURY/DNA M-123 9,922

74%



Page 55www.raymondmaine.org

Supplemental Assessment 

Tree Growth  

Withdrawal 



Page 56 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

TOWN OF RAYMOND 
SUPPLEMENTAL TAX CERTIFICATE

State of Maine 36 M.R.S.A. § 713 

We, the undersigned, Assessors of the Municipality of Raymond, Maine, hereby certify that the 
foregoing list of estates and assessments thereon, recorded in page 753 of this book , were either invalid, 
void or omitted by mistake from our original invoice and valuation and list of assessments dated the 
13th day of September 2023, or are a withdrawal penalty under Title 36 Section 581 or 1112,  that these 
lists are supplemental to the aforesaid original invoice, valuation and list of assessments, dated the 13th 
day of September, 2023, and are made by virtue of Title 36, Section 713, as amended. 

Given by our hand this 20th  day of June, 2024. 

Rolf Olsen 

Teresa Sadak 

Samuel Gifford 

Derek Ray 

Denis Morse 

Assessors, Town of Raymond 



Page 57 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

TOWN OF RAYMOND 
SUPPLEMENTAL TAX WARRANT

State of Maine 36 M.R.S.A. § 713 

County of CUMBERLAND , ss. 

To: SUZANNE CARR  , Tax Collector 

of the Municipality of RAYMOND  , within said County of 

CUMBERLAND . 

GREETINGS: 

Hereby are committed to you a true list of the assessments of the estates of the person(s) hereinafter named. 
You are hereby directed to levy and collect each of the person(s) named in said list his respective 
proportion, therein set down, of the sum of $ 464  dollars and 40/100 cents, it being the amount of said 
list; and all powers of the previous warrant for the collection of taxes issued by us to you and dated 

September 13, 2023 are extended thereto; and we do hereby certify that the list of 
 (here insert date of original warrant)

assessments of the estates of the persons named in said list is a supplemental assessment laid by virtue of 
Title 36, Section 713, as amended and the assessments and estates thereon as set forth in said list were 
either invalid, void, or omitted by mistake from the original list, or penalty under Title 36 section 581 or 
1112, committed unto you under our warrant dated__September 13, 2023_____.

 original date of warrant

Given by our hands this  20th  day of  June, 2024. 

Rolf Olsen 

Teresa Sadak 

Samuel Gifford 

Derek Ray 

Denis Morse  

Assessors, Town of Raymond 



753

M/L OWNER OF 
RECORD ADDRESS SUPPLEMENTAL 

VALUATION ACCT # TAX DOLLARS MISCELLANEOUS 
INFORMATION

011-065 Whitney Ralph L       
Whitney Harriette L  

75 Haskell Av      
Raymond, ME 04371 N/A 948 $464.40 Tree Growth penalty for voluntary 

withrawal of 1.18 acres mixed wood.

$464.40 

Signed __________________________________  , Assessor

TOWN OF RAYMOND - SUPPLEMENTAL TAX WARRANT LIST 

We, the undersigned, Assessors of the Municipality of Raymond,  hereby certify, that the foregoing list of estates and assessments, contain a list of 
valuations of the estates, real and personal, that were omitted from our original invoice and valuation and list of assessments dated September 13, 
2023, or are a withdrawal penalty under Title 36 Section 581 or 1112 and to be supplemented for the 2023 assessment as of June 20, 2024.      

Signed __________________________________  , Assessor

Signed __________________________________  , Assessor

Signed __________________________________  , Assessor

Signed __________________________________  , Assessor



Page 59www.raymondmaine.org

Town of Raymond 
Board of Assessors 

401 Webbs Mills Road, Raymond, ME 04071 

ESTIMATED TREE GROWTH PENALTY 
May 14, 2024 

Ralph Whitney 
Map – Lot 011-065

To Whom it may concern, 

I have calculated a Tree Growth withdrawal penalty for the voluntary withdrawal of 1.18 
acres classified land from Map 011, Lot 065 The acreage is classified as mixed wood and 
is adjacent to the owners 2-acre house site, which is unenrolled.  Our records indicate that 
the parcel was enrolled in the program in 1982.   

A calculation of the penalty for the removal is below. 

TG Assessment Assessed Just Value 
Acres Value Acres Value 

Base 
Addt 1.18 $1,800 
SI 
Other 
Soft 
Mixed 1.18 $337 
Hard 
Total 1.18 $1,800 1.18 $337 

Just Value* TG Assessment* Difference Penalty Rate Penalty 
$2,857 $535 2,322 0.20 $464.40 

* TG/Just Value Assessment is adjusted by the certified ratio per state statute (63% FOR
2024).
**Tree Growth rates change on a year to year basis. The above penalty calculation will
change after next commitment.

Calculation of Penalty. The penalty will be an amount equal to 30% of the difference 
between the 100% valuation (of the classified forest land on the assessment date 
immediately preceding withdrawal) and the just value of the property on the date of 
withdrawal. If the land has been classified for more than 10 years, the following 
percentages shall apply: 



Page 60 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

11 Years  29% 12 years 28% 
13 Years 27% 14 years 26% 
15 Years 25% 16 years 24% 
17 Years 23% 18 years 22% 
19 Years 21% 20 years + 20% 

For purposes of this subsection, just value at the time of withdrawal is the assessed just value of 
comparable property in the municipality adjusted by the municipality's certified assessment 
ratio.  

If you wish to proceed with this voluntary withdrawal from tree growth classification, 
please provide, in writing, a written statement of your intent to withdraw the acreage 
from classification. Please provide the amount of acreage to be withdrawn and a map 
showing the areas of withdrawal. If the withdrawal is a portion of the classified lands, a 
map identifying the area and type of woodlands must be provided as area removed shall 
be treated as separate parcels for future assessments. The penalty will be issued as a 
supplemental assessment to your parcel at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Board 
of Assessors. The amount of tax issued shall be due within 60 days of issuance. 

Sincerely, 

Curt E Lebel 
Assessors Agent, Town of Raymond 



Page 61www.raymondmaine.org



Page 62 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 63www.raymondmaine.org



Page 64 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 65www.raymondmaine.org



Page 66 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 
  

1 

GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
 
This Independent Contractor Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered on June 
20, 2024, by and between the Town of Raymond, Maine (the “Company/and or Town”) 
and Curt E. Lebel (“Contractor”) (collectively referred to as the “Parties” or individually 
as a “Party”). 

 
The Parties agree as follows: 
 

I. SERVICES:  The Contractor agrees to provide services consisting of: 
 
Consulting Assessing Services to the satisfaction of the Selectmen/Assessors.  
Specific services to include the following: 
 

1. Provide the Selectmen/Assessors with consulting services to assist them 
and the Assessing staff in complying with Maine Law regarding property tax 
assessment. 
 
2. A.  Maintain regular work hours for the Town of Raymond under this 
Agreement in accordance with Attachment A.      Contractor agrees to provide 
services as indicated below through the term of the agreement: 
 

o July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025 – 60 Days 
o July 1, 2025, through June 30, 2026 – 60 Days 
o July 1, 2026, through June 30, 2027 – 60 Days 

 
B.  In addition to regular work hours in support of daily assessing 

activities, the Contractor agrees to provide additional services over the term of the 
agreement in support of and implementation and defense of the scheduled 2026 
property revaluation.  Contractor agrees to provide services as indicated below 
through the term of the agreement: 

 
o July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2027 – 50 Days 

 
 
3.  The Contractor agrees to perform the following services: 
 

o Perform field inspections on properties that have been either  
(A)  issued a building permit prior to April 1st of each year;  
(B)  considered unfinished construction as of the previous April 1st; or 
(C)  identified by the Assessors, Assessors Agent, or Town Manager 
as needing a field inspection.  The field inspections are intended to 
verify and/or correct the physical descriptions on the existing property 
record cards. 

 
o Analyze results of State sales ratio studies to measure the equity of                

Contract for Assessing Services



Page 67www.raymondmaine.org

 
 
  

2 

      current assessments. 
o Make recommendations to Assessors on ways to improve equity of 

assessments. 
o Review and make recommendations to the Assessors on abatement 

requests. 
o Provide support and defense of assessments of behalf of the Board of 

Assessors before the local Board of Assessment Review, if necessary. 
o Work in cooperation and advise the Board of Assessors, Town 

Manager, Assessing Office Administrative Assistance, and Code 
Enforcement Officer to maintain standard operating procedures for the 
Assessing Office 

o Work toward instilling public confidence in the operation of the 
Assessing Office through courteous treatment of the public and 
cooperation with Town employees. 

o Develop and maintain the annual Assessing Department budget in 
cooperation with the Town Manager or Designee. 

o Prepare the Towns annual tax commitment warrant and certificates of 
assessment for authorization by the Board of Assessors. 

o Meet with Assessors and Town Manager in regard to annual 
appropriations, tax commitment and tax rate and overlay. 

o Provide oversight of the conduct and implementation of the 2026 
revaluation as agent and representative of the Board of Assessors, to 
included cooperating with revaluation company staff regarding 
valuation models, inspections, hearings and defense of values, etc.   

o Attend public meetings as necessary to provide updates to the Board 
of Assessors and the public on the progress of the revaluation project. 

 
4. Direct and assist Town Staff with the following tasks, when necessary: 
 

o Maintenance of computerized and manual records of the Town’s 
Assessing Office. 

o Completion of the Municipal Valuation Return to Maine Revenue 
Services by November 1st annually. 

o Completion of the Turnaround Document to Maine Revenue Services.  
o Completion of the Tree Growth Survey for Department of 

Conservation. 
o Calculation and assessment of tree growth, open space, farmland and 

working waterfront withdrawal penalties. 
o Review taxpayer lists (if the Town utilizes them) for changes in 

addresses or construction. 
o Produce new property cards for new properties. 
o Establishment of land valuations for new lots and reprice existing lots 

that have changed on the maps. 
o Organize and record all pertinent ownership, address and/or valuation 

changes. 



Page 68 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 
  

3 

o Assistance with all reimbursement and exemption applications (i.e. 
BETR 801, Homestead, Veterans) and all other forms required by the 
State (i.e. growth rate calculations). 

o Processing of annual personal property declarations. 
o Contractor may conduct up to 10% of services defined in section 1 on 

a remote basis during the term of this agreement, as is deemed 
necessary by the Contractor.  In the event of a major unforeseen 
disruption, this may be altered by mutual agreement of both parties. 

 
 
 
2.  TERM:  Contractor shall provide services to the Company pursuant to this 
Agreement for a term beginning on July 1, 2024, and ending on June 30, 2027 (the 
“Agreement Term”). 

  
If the Parties wish to amend specific terms of the agreement, they may do so upon 
written agreement agreed to and approved by both Parties. 

 
3.  COMPENSATION:  For services provided, the Company will pay Contractor at 
the rate described below per day of service.  (Day of Service is defined as normal 
business hours of the Company, 8:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.)  The Town’s fiscal year is 
defined as July 1 through June 30, annually. 
 
July 1, 2024, Through June 30, 2027 (regular annual services): 
 
Services Rate _                  Service Days per Year                        Total per Fiscal Year 
$600.00/Day      60 days/Fiscal Year               $36,000/Fiscal Year  
 
 
July 1, 2024, Through June 30, 2027 (Additional Services): 
 
Services Rate  _                    Total Additional Days           Total per Agreement Term 
$600.00/Day           50 days/Term            $30,000/per Agreement Term  

  
• Additional Services will be utilized in support of the revaluation project as 

necessary during the project duration, tracked separately by the Contractor and 
sourced from the revaluation reserve fund over the term of the agreement.   

 
If the Company is not open for business on a scheduled Contractor work day or 
portion thereof due to any reason other than posted Holiday, the Company will pay 
for that period at the rate set forth above. The Parties agree this provision is intended, 
but not limited, to Company closures or early releases due to inclement weather or 
other unforeseen events beyond its control.  Remote days will be utilized on these 
days as a priority.        
 



Page 69www.raymondmaine.org

 
 
  

4 

Services provided outside of normal business hours, including but not limited to, 
appeals relating to previous contractors, and requests from the Company for services 
other than other described herein, shall be billable to the Company at the rate of 
$100.00 per hour of service or set aside as compensated time off.  Contractor shall 
not perform services outside of normal business hours unless mutually agreed upon 
by both Parties.    

 
Services may be billed monthly with payment due within 14 days of receipt of 
invoice from Contractor.   
 
4. INSURANCE:  The Contractor shall carry and maintain in force public liability 
and Worker’s Compensation insurance (if applicable), and shall save the Town of 
Raymond and its officers harmless from all claims, demands, payments, suits, 
actions, recoveries and judgements of every kind and description brought or 
recovered against it by reason of an act or omission of said contractor, his agents or 
employees, in the execution of the work, including claims relating to labor and 
materials, patent rights and copyrights used in performing the work.  The 
Contractor’s public liability insurance policy shall provide comprehensive coverage 
against claims for personal injury, death, property damage, including the negligent 
loss, damage and/or destruction of valuable papers and Town records and documents.  
Liability limits shall not be less than $1,000,000 for any and all claims arising out of 
a single occurrence.  To the extent permitted by law, as such insurance provided by 
the Contractor shall be carried in favor of the municipality and its officers, employees 
and agents as well as in favor of the Contractor.  The Contractor shall not deny 
liability because of any legal defense or statutory immunity to which the municipality 
is entitled by reason of being a municipality.  All certificates of insurance showing 
policies covering insurance described herein shall be filed with the municipal 
officers.  
 

 
5.  EXPENSES:  Expenses to be borne by Contractor are as follows:    

 
(1)    Contractor shall furnish a vehicle for use in performance of services during     

normal business hours. Contractor shall maintain comprehensive 
automobile insurance coverage, ensure that all drivers in its employ are 
properly licensed and insured, and ensure that all such vehicles are properly 
inspected and registered.  Alternatively, Contractor shall have use of Town 
vehicle for property inspections, if available and with the consent of the 
Town. 

 
 (2)   Contractor shall bear expenses incurred in maintaining all certifications and 

Licenses necessary for the Contractor to provide services as stated in 
Section 1 of this Agreement; however, the Company shall bear expenses 
and dues for seminars, trade conferences and professional organizations in 
which the Contractor's attendance or membership is requested or required 
by the Company. 



Page 70 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 
  

5 

 
(3) Upon receipt of proper invoices and proof, the Company shall reimburse 

Contractor, at the Company’s current approved rate, for mileage incurred 
in the performance of services outside normal business hours described in 
Section III, or for attendance of seminars, trade conferences and 
professional organizations in which the Contractor's attendance or 
membership is requested or required by the Company.   

 
(4) Contractor shall furnish materials, tools, and equipment, except as 

otherwise specified by both Parties to satisfactorily perform the services 
required by this Agreement. 

 
(5) Company shall furnish adequate administrative assistance and cooperation 

to assist Contractor in performing the services required under this 
Agreement. Contractor shall maintain a separate place of business but shall 
be provided space at the Company as may be necessary to perform the 
services described in this Agreement. 

 
(6)  Contractor shall bear all other expenses incurred in the performance of this 

Agreement.   
 

6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: Contractor is an independent contractor 
and not an employee of the Company. Contactor is not entitled to any of the benefits 
provided to the employees of the Company. Contractor is not subject to, nor shall it 
derive any benefit from, Company personnel policies regarding employees. The 
Contractor shall directly pay, from Contractor's own funds, all state and federal 
income taxes, social security and Medicaid taxes, unemployment insurance, and all 
other amounts due to any state or federal authorities on account of the work to be 
performed by Contractor under this Agreement.  In the event any state or federal 
agency shall determine that the Contractor is not an independent contractor for 
payroll withholding purposes, the Company shall be entitled to deduct from amounts 
otherwise due to the Contractor all state and federal withholding amounts and taxes 
which may be required by law. 

 
7. WARRANTY:  The Contractor warrants:  
   
(1) That it is familiar with all State Statutes, rules, regulations and orders 

which may in any way affect the services.   
(2)             That it will maintain all certifications required through the “Term 

of Agreement”. 
(3)             That in the performance of its services, it will perform in 

accordance with applicable standards of conduct for professionals in the 
field. 

(4)             That it is financially solvent, is experienced in and competent to 
perform the services and is able to furnish the materials, tools and 



Page 71www.raymondmaine.org

 
 
  

6 

equipment required by Section I, Section IV and Section V of this 
Agreement.    

 
8. TERMINATION: 

 
In addition to any and all other rights “Parties” may have available according to law, 
if the Company or Contractor defaults by failing to substantially perform any 
provision, term or condition of this Agreement (including without limitation the 
failure to make monetary payment when due), the other party may terminate the 
Agreement by providing written notice to the defaulting party.  This notice shall 
describe with sufficient detail the nature of the default.  The party receiving such 
notice shall have 30 days from the effective date of such notice to cure the default(s).  
Unless waived by the party providing notice, the failure to cure the default(s) within 
such time period shall result in the automatic termination of this Agreement. The 
Company reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at any time, upon thirty days 
prior written notice to the Contractor, whenever the Company, in its sole discretion, 
determines it to be in the Company’s best interests to do so.  In the event of a 
termination under this Section VII.2, the Contractor shall be entitled to receive all 
compensation earned through the effective date of the termination, as well as an 
additional payment equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the contract amount, as full and final 
compensation for all services performed or to have been performed under this 
Agreement.  The Contractor reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at any 
time, upon thirty days prior written notice to the Company, whenever the Contractor, 
in its sole discretion, determines it to be in the Contractors best interests to do so.  In 
the event of a termination under this provision, the Contractor shall be available to 
provide services through the effective date of termination and shall be entitled to 
receive all compensation earned through the effective date of termination as full and 
final compensation for all services performed or to have been performed under this 
Agreement. 

 
9.  FORCE MAJEURE:  Provided such Party gives written notice to the other of 
such event, a Party shall not be liable for its failure to perform its respective 
obligations under this Agreement, if prevented from doing so doing by any cause 
beyond the reasonable control of said Party.    

 
10.   RETURN OF PROPERTY:  All drawings, notes, documents, plans and 
specifications or other material to be developed under this Agreement shall become 
the property of the Company and be promptly delivered to the Company upon the 
completion of services under this Agreement or sooner upon the Company’s written 
request, or the termination of the Agreement.  
 
11.  INDEMNIFICATION:  The Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold 
the Company, including its officials, representatives and employees, harmless against 
any and all liabilities, causes of action, judgments, claims or demands, including 
attorney’s fees and costs, for personal injury (including death), damages, malfeasance 
or malpractice, or property damage arising out of or caused by the performance of 



Page 72 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 
  

7 

services under this Agreement by the Contractor. Contractor further agrees to 
indemnify and hold the Company harmless from and against any additional cost or 
expense, including back-up withholding, penalties, interest and insurance premiums, 
incurred by the Company on account of any invalidation of the Contractor's 
"independent contractor" status by any state or federal office or agency. 

     
12.  CUMULATIVE RIGHTS: The Parties’ rights under this Agreement are 
cumulative and shall not be construed as exclusive of each other unless otherwise 
required by law. 

 
13. WAIVER: The failure of either party to enforce any provisions of this agreement 
shall not be deemed a waiver or limitation of that party's right to subsequently 
enforce and compel strict compliance with every provision of this Agreement. 

 
14. SEVERABILITY: If any part or parts of this Agreement shall be held 
unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of this Agreement shall continue in full 
force and effect. If any provision of this Agreement is deemed invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, and if limiting such provision 
would make the provision valid, then such provision shall be deemed to be construed 
as so limited. 

 
15.   ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the Parties and supersedes any prior understanding or representation of any 
kind preceding the date of this Agreement. There are no other promises, conditions, 
understandings or other agreements, whether oral or written, relating to the subject 
matter of this Agreement. This Agreement may be modified in writing and must be 
signed by both the Company and Contractor. 

 
16. NOTICE: Any notice required or otherwise given pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be in writing and mailed certified return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or 
delivered by overnight delivery service, addressed as follows: 

 
  
 
 The Company: 

 
 Town of Raymond 
 401 Webbs Mills Rd 

    Raymond, Maine 04071  
 
 Contractor: 
 
 Curt E. Lebel 
 20 Popple Lane  
 Richmond, Maine 04357 

 



Page 73www.raymondmaine.org

 
 
  

8 

Either Party may change such addresses from time to time by providing notice as 
set forth above. 

 
17.  GOVERNING LAW:  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Maine. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 74 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 
  

9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed the 
day and year first written above. 
 
 
 
THE COMPANY: 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Susan L Look, Town Manager 
 
 
 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Curt Lebel 
 
 



Page 75 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

Town of Raymond
Capital Improvement Reserve Funds

FY 2018-19

Description Audit      
June 30th Budget Expenses Audit      

June 30th Budget Expenses Audit      
June 30th Budget Expenses Audit      

June 30th Budget Expenses Audit      
June 30th Budget

Expenses 
(as of 

5/28/2024)

Balance as 
of 

5/28/2024
Budget Expenses Audit      

June 30th

Fire Dept - Reserve $370,934 $75,000 $282,662 $163,272 $75,000 $95,620 $142,652 $75,000 -$7,634 $225,286 $75,000 $262,336 $37,950 $75,000 -$100 $113,050 $115,000
Land Improvements- Cemeteries $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Open Space Reserve $7 -$28,700 $28,707 $28,707 $28,707 $28,707 $28,707
Playground $35,000 $9,621 $25,379 $35,000 $18,559 $41,820 $35,000 $4,868 $71,952 $9,352 $62,600 $35,000 $62,220 $35,380 $35,000
Public Works - Equipment $3,507 $215,000 $210,207 $8,300 $215,000 $112,751 $110,549 $215,000 $325,549 $0 $225,000 $144,139 $80,861 $225,000 $142,754 $163,107 $225,000
Public Works - Municipal Facilities $111,489 $35,000 $123,246 $23,243 $35,000 $51,697 $6,546 $35,000 $21,714 $19,832 $50,000 $36,341 $33,491 $85,000 $93,375 $25,116 $85,000
Public Works - Paving $70,290 $320,000 $290,366 $99,924 $310,000 $399,454 $10,470 $310,000 $144,910 $175,560 $410,000 $425,977 $159,583 $410,000 $249,431 $320,152 $410,000
Public Works - Snow Equipment $270,275 $9,067 $7,095 $1,972 $1,972 $1,972 $1,972
Revaluation Reserve $100,000 $100,000 $80,000 $100 $79,900 $45,000
Sidewalk Match $65,227 $6,968 $58,259 $792 $57,467 $8,551 $48,916 $7,182 $41,734 $41,734
Signs $8,793 $8,793 $0 $0
Technology $105,000 $0 $105,000 $110,000 $60,000 $155,000 $110,000 $70,334 $194,666 $30,000 $59,865 $164,801 $100,000 $2,100 $262,701 $100,000

Assessing - Software Reserve $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
Fire Dept - IRT Projects $6,456 $6,456 $6,456 $6,456 $6,456 $6,456
Fire Dept - Review Fees $12,253 -$742 $12,995 -$260 $13,255 $13,255 $13,255 $13,255
Hazardous Waste Reserve $2,971 $2,971 $2,971 $2,971 $2,971 $2,971
Patricia Ave Recreational Facilities $21,138 $21,138 $21,138 $21,138 $21,138 $21,138
Sheri Gagnon Park $16 $16 $16 $16 $16 $16
Town Hall Feasibility Study $213 $213 $213 $213 $213 $213
Water Watch Account $4,161 $4,161 $4,161 $4,161 $4,161 $4,161

$0
Total $952,730 $785,000 $902,421 $574,101 $790,000 $745,708 $618,393 $780,000 $568,292 $830,101 $890,000 $1,045,192 $674,909 $1,010,000 $549,880 $1,135,029 $1,015,000 $0 $0

No longer active project total $52,208 $52,950 $53,210 $53,210 $53,210 $53,210

FY 2024-25FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

as of 5/28/2024

CIP History



Page 76www.raymondmaine.org

To: Select Board 

From: Susan Look, Town Manager 

Re: Re-allocation of Funds from Complete or Abandoned CIP Projects 

Date: June 15, 2024 

 

In reviewing the latest audit document from June 30, 2023, I found that there were several CIP projects listed 
that were no longer active.  I looked back in each preceding audit to FY2018-2019 (as is provided in your 
epacket) and found that these balances have simply been carried forward in the audit.  The Finance Director 
and I discussed this, and our research took us to the State statutes where we found that 30-A MRSA §5802 
says in part:   

The municipal officers are trustees of the municipal reserve fund. 

3.  Transfer of balance.  The balance of any account of a reserve fund may be transferred to another 
reserve account or to surplus when the purpose for which it was established has been accomplished 
or abandoned. 

 

I have conferred with each Department Head involved, and they agree that reallocating the funds to their current 
CIP lines would be most helpful.  I would like to propose the following to begin the conversation: 

Description 
FY 2022-
23 Audit      

June 
30th 

Reallocate to 

Assessing - Software Reserve $5,000 Assessing - Revaluation Reserve 
      
Fire Dept - IRT Projects $6,456 Fire Dept - Reserve 
Fire Dept - Review Fees $13,255 Fire Dept - Reserve 
  $19,711 Total 
      
Patricia Ave Recreational Facilities $21,138 Parks & Rec - Playground 
Sheri Gagnon Park $16 Parks & Rec - Playground 
  $21,154 Total 
      
Hazardous Waste Reserve $2,971 Public Works - Municipal Facilities 
Town Hall Feasibility Study $213 Public Works - Municipal Facilities 
  $3,184 Total 
      
Water Watch Account $4,161 Public Works - New account to save for dock repair 
      
Total $53,210   

 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sue 



Page 77www.raymondmaine.org

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Selectmen 
401 Webbs Mills Road 

Raymond, Maine 04071 

Appointment by Municipal Officers 
 
Pursuant to M.R.S.A. 30-A §2601, the undersigned municipal officers of the Town of Raymond 
do hereby vote to appoint and confirm the following for the below noted terms: 
 

Position Expiration First Name Last Name 
Animal Control Officer 6/30/2025 Jessica Jackson 
Code Enforcement Officer   6/30/2025 Christopher Hanson 
Constable 6/30/2025 Nathan White 
Contract Assessor 6/30/2025 Curt Lebel 
Emergency Management Director 6/30/2025 Bruce Tupper 
Fire Chief 6/30/2025 Bruce Tupper 
Forest Warden 6/30/2025 Bruce Tupper 
Freedom of Information Officer 6/30/2025 Sue Look 
General Assistance Administrator 6/30/2025 Jennie Silverblade 
Harbor Master 6/30/2025 Nathan White 
Health Officer 6/30/2025 Cathy Gosselin 
Road Commissioner 6/30/2025 Nathan White 
Tax Collector 6/30/2025 Suzanne Carr 
Town Clerk 6/30/2025 Melanie Fernald 

 
 
Given under our hands on the 20th day of June 2024. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Rolf Olsen      Derek Ray 
 
 
___________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Teresa Sadak     Denis Morse 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Samuel Gifford 

Annual Staff Appointments



Page 78 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 

Board of Selectmen 
401 Webbs Mills Road 
Raymond, Maine 04071 

 
 
 

 
Appointment by Municipal Officers 

 
Pursuant to M.R.S.A. 30-A §2601, the undersigned municipal officers of the Town of Raymond 
do hereby vote to appoint and confirm the following committee members for the below noted 
terms: 

 
Committee Term 

(yrs) 
Expiration Name Address 

Board of Assessment Review 3 06/30/2027 Robert Harmon PO Box 490 
     
Conservation Commission 1 06/30/2025 Bill Fraser 1 Justin Lynn Drive 
Conservation Commission 1 06/30/2025 Russ Hutchinson 363 North Raymond Road 
Conservation Commission 1 06/30/2025 Kimberly Post 112 Mountain Road 
Conservation Commission 1 06/30/2025 John Rand 20 Dryad Woods Road 
     
Planning Board 3 06/30/2027 Steve Clark 76 Painted Turtle Road 
Planning Board 3 06/30/2027 Michael Richman 15 Cedar Lane 
     
Recycling Committee 3 06/30/2027 Susan Accardi PO Box 928 
Recycling Committee 3 06/30/2027 Cathy Gosselin PO Box 318 
Recycling Committee 3 06/30/2027 Grace Leavitt 2 Leavitt Road 
     
Veterans Memorial Park Committee 1 06/30/2025 David McIntire 31 Egypt Road 
     
Zoning Board of Appeals 3 06/30/2027 Thomas Hennessey 25 Haskell Ave 
Zoning Board of Appeals 3 06/30/2027 David Murch 2 Canal Road 
 
 
Given under our hands on the 20th day of June 2024. 
 
 
___________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Rolf Olsen      Derek Ray 
 
 
___________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Teresa Sadak     Denis Morse 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Samuel Gifford 

Annual Board & Committee Appointments



Page 79www.raymondmaine.org

 
2024-2025  Raymond Fee Schedule  Rev 6/20/2024 Page 1 of 6 
 

TOWN OF RAYMOND 
2024-2025 FEE SCHEDULE 

Effective July 1, 2024 
Animal Control Fees: 

Description Fee 

Dogs at Large 

1st violation $50 plus all associated court fees 

2nd violation Not less than $100 plus all associated court fees 

3rd violation Not less than $100 plus all associated court fees 

Canine Waste Infraction 

1st violation $50 

2nd violation $75 

3rd violation Not less than $100, but not more than $500 

Animal at Large  $50 

Animal on Beach, Park or Cemetery  $50 

Animal Left in Car Unattended  $50 

Barking Dog Violation 

1st violation $50 

2nd violation $100 

3rd violation $200 plus all associated court fees 

Unlicensed Dog Violation  $30 plus licensing fee 

Board for Animals Picked up by ACO  $25 per day 

Impound fees 

1st impoundment $50 

2nd impoundment $75 

3rd and subsequent $100 

Transportation Fee Outside of Town 
Limits  $25 per trip 

Zoning Board of Appeals Fees: 
Description Fee 

ZBA Application 
Residential $100 
Commercial $235 

ZBA Escrow Fees 

$500 plus additional fees for completion of professional 
reviews, if necessary, based on consultant hourly rate. 
Additional billing may be required if an escrow account has 
a negative balance. A 1.5% finance charge will be included 
each month if payment is not received thirty (30) days after 
invoicing. 

ZBA Newspaper Legal Notices $200 per ad (two minimum) 

ZBA Abutters Notices $8 per notice 

Code Enforcement: 
Description Fee 

Building Permits New Construction or  
additions 

Finished Area $0.40 per square foot 

Unfinished Area $0.30 per square foot 

Commercial/Industrial $0.50 per square foot 

Minimum Permit Fee $50 

Proposed FY2024-2025 Fee Schedule



Page 80 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
2024-2025  Raymond Fee Schedule  Rev 6/20/2024 Page 2 of 6 
 

Description Fee 

Residential and 
Commercial Alterations or 
Renovations 

Up to to $1,000 $50 

$1,001 to $5,000 $75 

$5,001 to $10,000 $100 

$10,001 and up 
$100 plus  
$10 per thousand or 
fraction thereof 

Separate Permit Fees 

Chimneys/Antennas $50 

Demolitions $50 

Signs – Business or 
Commercial 

Up to 6 square feet $50 

Over 6 square feet 
$50 plus  
$0.15 per square foot over 
6 square feet 

Swimming Pools 
In-Ground $100 

Above Ground $50 

Docks – Permanent or Seasonal $0.10 per square foot or 
$50 whichever is greater.  

Plumbing Fees 

Pre-inspection Fee Included with the State Fee 

Re-inspection Fee $100 per visit 

Subsurface Complete 
Systems – Non-
engineered 

Initial Fee $250 

 - Plus Town Fee $25 
 - Plus State Water Quality  
 Surcharge $15 

 - Plus State Variance $20 

Primitive Disposal System (includes alternative toilet) $100 

Engineered Systems  $200 plus $25 Town Fee 

System Components 
(installed separately) 

Treatment Tank   $150 plus $25 Town Fee 

Alternative Toilet $50 plus $25 Town Fee 

Disposal Area 

$150 plus  
$25 Town Fee plus  
$15 State Water Quality 
Surcharge 

Engineered Disposal Area $150 plus $25 Town Fee 
Separated Laundry 
Disposal System $35 plus $25 Town Fee 

Seasonal Conversion $50 plus $25 Town Fee 

Internal Plumbing Fees Per State schedule Plumbing fixtures include 
back-flow devices 

$10 per fixture ($40 
minimum) plus 
$25 Town Fee 

Penalties 
Failure to obtain permit prior to starting work on any 
construction/after-the-fact-permit Double the Standard Fee 

Re-inspections $100 per visit 

Electrical Permits 

Fee Residential $50 

Permanent Overhead 
Service Residential $30 



Page 81www.raymondmaine.org

 
2024-2025  Raymond Fee Schedule  Rev 6/20/2024 Page 3 of 6 
 

Description Fee 

Permanent Underground 
Service Residential $40 

New Construction, 
Renovations, Additions 
(cost per square foot) 

Residential $0.05 

HVAC Permit Based on Construction & Equipment Costs 
$20 for 1st $1,000 of cost, 
plus $5 for each additional 
$1,000 of cost 

Miscellaneous Code Enforcement Fees: 
Description Fee 

Home Occupation $100 

Campsite (personal) $50 annually 

Campgrounds $75 annually 

Change of Use 
Without Renovations $50 

With Renovations $0.50 per square foot or 
$50 minimum 

Driveway/Entrance/Address Permit $25 

Shoreland Project Permit (trees, docks, soil disturbance within the Shoreland Zone) $50 

Road Opening $75 plus $1.50 per square 
foot 

Road Name Change $75 

Recording, Indexing, and Preserving Plans $15 

Re-inspection Fee $100 each visit 

Additional Inspections per MUBEC $100 per visit 

Waste Fees: 

Description Fee 
Tag for extra curbside household trash $1 each 

Planning Board Fees: 
Description Fees 

Planning Board Pre-application Conference $75 

Site Plan Review Application 

Staff Projects up to 10,000 
square feet $75 

Minor Projects less than 
10,000 square feet $100 

Major Projects 10,000 square 
feet or greater $250 

Site Plan Review Escrow * 

Staff Projects up to 10,000 
square feet $1,000 

Minor Projects less than 
20,000 square feet $1,500 

Major Projects 20,000 square 
feet or greater $2,000 



Page 82 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
2024-2025  Raymond Fee Schedule  Rev 6/20/2024 Page 4 of 6 
 

Preliminary Subdivision Review $625 plus $200 per lot/unit 
greater than 4 

Final Subdivision Review $475 plus $100 per lot/unit 
greater than 4 

Minor Subdivision Review $475 

Planning Board Escrow Fees for Subdivision Review * 
$2,000, plus additional fees for 
completion of professional 
reviews, if necessary, based on 
consultant hourly rate 

Planning Board Abutters Notices $8 per notice 

Planning Board Newspaper Legal Notices $200 per Ad (two minimum) 

* Finance Charge for Site Plan Review Escrow & Planning Board Escrow Accounts:  Additional billing may be 
required if an escrow account has a negative balance. A 1.5% finance charge will be included each month if 
payment is not received thirty (30) days after invoicing. 

Fire Department: 
Description Fee 

Fire Report Request $25 

Patient’s Treatment Record $5 for 1st page & $.45 for each 
additional, not to exceed $250 

Wood Stove Permit & Chimney Inspection $25 

Fire Permit Free at Fire Department 

Inspection of New Construction 

Less than 10,000 square feet or 
100,000 cubic feet $70 

More than 10,000 square feet or 
100,000 cubic feet $90 

Inspection of Existing Construction 

Less than 10,000 square feet or 
100,000 cubic feet $40 

More than 10,000 square feet or 
100,000 cubic feet $60 

Inspection of Additions/Alterations 

Less than 10,000 square feet 
(regardless of existing size) $20 

More than 10,000 square feet or 
100,000 cubic feet 

Required to use the fee schedule for 
new construction more than 10,000 
square feet 

Review of Subdivisions $60 

Review of Each House in Subdivision after Completion $15 

Inspection of Public Shows/Events $10 

Annual/bi-annual Inspections of Campgrounds, Schools, Summer Camps, 
Liquor Licenses Free 

Bi-annual Inspection of Businesses, Churches, Town Buildings Free 

Re-inspection for Violations $10 per inspection 

Motor Vehicle Accident Billing 
 

(FEMA rates per hour) 

Engine $350 

Ariel Truck $500 

Ambulance $200 

Squad (Rescue) $400 

Tanker $200 



Page 83www.raymondmaine.org

 
2024-2025  Raymond Fee Schedule  Rev 6/20/2024 Page 5 of 6 
 

Description Fee 
Service Truck / Command Vehicle $100 

Cemetery Prices: 

Description Fee 
Resident – 1 plot (includes perpetual care) $400 

Non-Resident – 1 plot (includes perpetual care) $1,000 

Violating any provisions of the Cemetery Ordinance.  Each 
day a violation occurs shall be deemed a separate offense. 

Not less than $100 and not more than $2,500, plus 
attorney fees & costs 

Office Charges: 
Description Fee 

Credit Card Charge Fee 
Up to $40 $1.00 

Over $40 2.5% 

DVD Copy $5.00 

Photo Copies of Property Cards $.50 per side 

Photo Copy of Reduced Town Map $1.50 

Photo Copy of Deed 
1st Page $1.50 

Subsequent Pages $.50 each 

Photo Copies – General $.50 per side 

Photo Copies – Plans copied on 
Plotter – 36” X 24” 

Colored $2.00 

Black & White $2.00 

Fax 
Per Page Sent $2.50 

Per Page Received $1.00 

Labels 
Research $10.00 per hour 

Preparation $.10 per label 

Map – Colored 

8.5” X 11” $1.00 

11” X 17” $1.50 

24” X 36” Full Set of Town Maps $150.00 

Notary Public 

Per Notary Signature – Non-resident $2.50 

Per Notary Signature - Resident Free 

Per Notary Signature – Petition 
Efforts $1.00 

For Complex Court Documents or 
Real Estate Closing Documents $25.00 

Tax Lien/Discharge Research $20.00/hour after the 1st hour 

Printed List Fees:                     
Description Fee 

Dog Licensing List 
Paper $30 

Electronic $20 

 
Taxpayer List 

Paper $500 

Electronic $65 



Page 84 June 20, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
2024-2025  Raymond Fee Schedule  Rev 6/20/2024 Page 6 of 6 
 

Description Fee 

 On Website Free 

Liquor Licenses: 
Description Fee 

Application $10 

Advertising with Public Hearing Application $100 

Temporary Liquor License Application (catering) $10 

Town Clerk’s Office Fees:                
Description Fee 

Vital Records 

Non-Certified Copy of Birth, Death or 
Marriage $5 

Research $10 per hour after 1st hour 

Copying – 8.5” X 11” (prior to 1892) $.50 

Copying – 11” X 17” (prior to 1892) $1 

Returned Checks/Items $35 

Permits/Businesses 

Billiard, Pool, Bowling Alleys $50 

Cable TV Franchise 2.5% through Time Warner 

Business Listing $10 

Explosives – keeping/transporting $50 

Public Exhibitions $50 plus $1 per person plus legal 
advertisement 

Special Amusement Permit $50 plus legal advertisement 

Peddler's Permit – Lunch Wagon 
Non-Resident Annually $500 

Resident Annually $250 
 

 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
Rolf Olsen Derek Ray  
 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
Teresa Sadak Denis Morse 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Samuel Gifford 


	Agenda
	Public Hearing Notice
	Special Town Meeting Warrant
	Previous Meeting Minutes
	Citizens Petition - Commercial Solar Energy Systems
	MMA Town Meeting & Elections Manual - Voter Petitions
	Proposed Tax Abatements
	Contract for Assessing Services
	CIP History
	Annual Staff Appointments
	Annual Board & Committee Appointments
	Proposed FY2024-2025 Fee Schedule

